Document 1

From: Lynelle Briggs

To: Lynelle Briggs; ; ; N <<
Brouwer, Gordon; ;

Subject: REPORT OF THE REVIEW INTO PUBLIC SECTOR BOARD APPOINTMENTS PROCESSES

Date: Friday, 4 August 2023 7:53:18 PM

Attachments: Transmittal letter to Katy Gallagher Board Review.docx

Hi there, here is my final report of the Review into Public Sector Board Appointments. Thank you
very much for the opportunity to play my part in this important reform agenda.
Lynelle Briggs



Document 2

From: Lynelle Briggs
To: de Brouwer, Gordon
Subject: Re: REPORT OF THE REVIEW INTO PUBLIC SECTOR BOARD APPOINTMENT PROCESSES [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Sunday, 30 July 2023 6:03:55 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg
image(004.png

On 30 Jul 2023, at 5:27 pm, de Brouwer, Gordon
<Gordon.deBrouwer@apsc.gov.au> wrote:

Lynelle and Glyn

I have read the revised report

Best
Gordon

Sent from my iPhone

On 27 Jul 2023, at 8:54 am, Davis, Glyn
<Glyn.Davis@pmc.gov.au> wrote:

OFFICIAL

Thanks Lynelle for copying me into the exchang_

Regards,

Glyn



Professor Glyn Davis AC
Secretary,
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet

p.

Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit, Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box
6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600
e. glyn.davis@pmc.gov.au w. pmc.gov.au

Executive Assistant: I_
e.d

<I--[if lvml]-->

<imageOOl,jpg>
<image004.png>
<l --[endif]-->The Department acknowledges and pays respect to the past,

present and emerging Elders and Traditional Custodians of Country, and the
continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander peoples.

From: Lynelle rise: NIEUNI

Sent: Wednesday, 26 July 2023 3:25 PM
To: de Brouwer, Gordon <Gordon.deBrouwer@apsc.gov.au>;-

I O- ', G/

<Glyn.Davis@pmc.gov.au>; Lynelle Briggs

Subject: REPORT OF THE REVIEW INTO PUBLIC SECTOR BOARD
APPOINTMENT PROCESSES

Hi there
Here is my penultimate draft of the report following my review into

public sector board appointment processes.

Thank you
Lynelle Briggs

IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, contains information
that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or

other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you
must not review, copy, disseminate or disclose its contents to any other

party or take action in reliance of any material contained within it. If you
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by
return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the
message from your computer system.







Document 3

From: Lynelle Briggs

To: de Brouwer, Gordon; [ SISl Davis. Glvo; Lynelle Brigas

Subject: REPORT OF THE REVIEW INTO PUBLIC SECTOR BOARD APPOINTMENT PROCESSES
Date: Wednesday, 26 July 2023 3:31:58 PM

Attachments: APS Reform Final Board Appointments Report July 2023.docx

Hi there
Here is my penultimate draft of the report following my review into public sector board

appointment processes.

Thank you
Lynelle Briggs



Document 4

From: Lynelle Brigas
To: de Brouwer, Gordon

Subject: Accepted: 14.30 | Meeting - Gordon & Lynelle Briggs Board Appointments review [SEC=OFFICIAL]




Document 5

From:
To:
Subject:

'
re: 14.30 | Meeting - Gordon & Lynelle Briggs Board Appointments review [SEC=OFFICIAL]




From: de Brouwer, Gordon

To: "Lvnelle Briggs"

Subject: RE: Board Performance [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 17 July 2023 8:19:30 AM

Document 6

OFFICIAL

From: ynele brices SN

Sent: Monday, 17 July 2023 8:11 AM

To: de Brouwer, Gordon <Gordon.deBrouwer@apsc.gov.au>

- R - - -
R @-0sccov.au>

Subject: RE: Board Performance [SEC=OFFICIAL]

From: de Brouwer, Gordon <Gordon.deBrouwer@apsc.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, July 17, 2023 8:01 AM
To: Lynelle Briges SRR

Subject: RE: Board Performance [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

From: Lynclle Briges AN

Sent: Friday, 14 July 2023 6:26 PM
To: de Brouwer, Gordon <Gordon.deBrouwer@apsc.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Board Performance

From: ynele Brie: ERHIENNI

Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 6:18 PM



To: de Brouwer, Gordon <Gordon.deBrouwer@pmc.gov.au>;_

ce: ynelle Brice: ENIEN

Subject: Board Performance

Hi Gordon

I - 2"

that section of my report, which now also includes the code of conduct._

Lynelle

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




Document 7

From: Lynelle Briggs
To: de Brouwer, Gordon
Subject: Accepted: 14.30 | Meeting - Gordon & Lynelle Briggs - discuss feedback on draft review report

[SEC=OFFICIAL]




Document 8

From: de Brouwer, Gordon
To:

Subject:
Attachments:

14.30 | Meeting - Gordon & Lynelle Briggs - discuss feedback on draft review report [SEC=OFFICIAL]




Document 9

From: de Brouwer, Gordon
To:

Subject:
Attachments:

14.00 | Meeting - Gordon & Lynelle Briggs - discuss feedback on draft review report [SEC=OFFICIAL]




Document 10

From: Lynelle Briggs
To: "Woolcott, Peter"
Subject: Accepted: 9:30 Discuss: Review of Public Sector Board Appointments Processes - Ms Lynelle Briggs and APS

Commissioner Peter Woolcott [SEC=OFFICIAL]




Document 11

From: Woolcott, Peter

To:

Cc:

Subject: 9:30 Discuss: Review of Public Sector Board Appointments Processes - Ms Lynelle Briggs and APS
Commissioner Peter Woolcott [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Attachments:

17.03.2023: Meeting scheduled as rﬁuested bi Ms Lynelle Briggs throu_f to review the attached Terms of Reference.

Availability discussed and agreed with .
Attending are:
Mr Peter Woolcott

Ms Lynelle Briggs

Thank you.

Executive Assistant to the Commissioner | Peter Woolcott AO

Australian Public Service Commission

Level 5, B Block, Treasury Building, Parkes Place West, PARKES ACT 2600
GPO Box 3176 CANBERRA ACT 2601

T: _ W: Www.apsc.gov.au <http://www_apsc.gov.au/>
<https://twitter com/PublicServiceAU> <https://www.facebook.com/AusPublicService/>

NOTES:

APS Reform Office | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet

EEEE - S - -

Ngunnawal Country, One National Circuit Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600



Review into Public Sector Board Appointments Processes
2023

Terms of Reference

Context

The 2019 review into the Public Service, Our Public Service, Our Future: Independent Review
of the Public Service 2019 (the Thodey Review) emphasised the importance of maintaining
the highest standards of public sector integrity, and the role these standards play in the
‘APS’s capacity to provide services to citizens, to regulate effectively and to provide
well-informed and influential advice’?.

Since the Thodey Review, the importance of public trust in Government, and the
transparency and integrity of public institutions, has come into even sharper focus in the
face of COVID-19, natural disasters, and increasing economic uncertainty.

Minister for the Public Service, the Hon Katy Gallagher announced the first priorities of the
Public Service Reform Agenda (the APS Reform Agenda) in October 2022. One of the
activities under that Agenda was to undertake a review of arrangements and processes for
appointments to public sector boards, to be completed by mid-2023.

This Review forms part of the Government’s integrity agenda and will consider the
connections across that agenda, including the recommendation to amend the Merit and
Transparency guidelines for statutory appointments made in Recommendation 39a of the
Thodey Report. The review will examine how the appointment of members to public sector
boards and relevant bodies may be used to enhance integrity and trust in the institutions of
Government. It will also explore whether a renewed approach to diversity, including First
Nations, gender, culturally and linguistically diverse, geographic and professional
background and expertise, age and other inclusion matters might strengthen the outcomes
for all Australians in the administration of Government.

Purpose of this Review

The focus of this Review is to consider and propose appropriate standards for the processes
by which Board members are appointed to Government Boards. In considering these
processes, the Review will seek to consider how appointments to Boards can contribute to
integrity and trust in the institutions of Government. The Review will include consideration
of:

1 See ‘Our Public Service, Our Future: Independent Review of the Public Service’ 2019, p. 105.



e The process to identify suitable pools of candidates for consideration of different
Board roles;

e The professional qualifications and experiences, lived experience and identification
of skills and expertise required to fulfil particular roles;

e How expertise and professional qualifications are balanced across the composition
of Boards;

e The diversity of board membership, including in terms of gender, culturally and
linguistically diverse, First Nations and geographic representation;

e Review processes to track performance, behaviours and effectiveness of Boards;

e The role of the Chair and Board in selection processes;

e The role of APS staff in selection processes;

e The role of Minsters and the processes through which Board appointments are
made; and

e The standards expected of private sector boards in Australia and whether Australian
Government Boards should meet those, or a different standard. This may include
legislative, policy or case law expectations.

The Review will not consider current appointments or appointment processes related to
specific individuals.

Consultation

The Reviewer will consult widely across the Australian Public Service, and with current and
former Board members, and individuals from the public and private sectors with relevant
insights on public sector boards to support this Review.

Appointment of Independent Reviewer
The Review will be led by Ms Lynelle Briggs AO.

Ms Briggs will be supported by a small secretariat in the Department of the Prime Minister
and Cabinet to assist with the administration of the Review.

Timeframes

The Review will commence in February 2023, with the Final Report provided to the Minister
for the Public Service mid-2023.

Publication of this Report

These Terms of Reference and the Final Report to the Minister for the Public Service will be
published on the APS Reform Website.





